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[Shri Suresh Kalmadi] 
are  concerned  about  what  is happening in 
Kashmir and what has happened    to Mr. 
Doraiswamy. The  Home     Minister had said 
that the matter was in a delicate stage. But 
after that, there has been total bungling. Three   
terrorists   have   already been released but  
Mr. Doraiswamy  has not  been released  as  
yet. What was the agreement between the 
terrorists and the Government?  The  House  
would  like  to know. We do not want to 
believe only the newspapers. The Home  
Minister     should take  Parliament  into  
confidence  and  he should tell   us whether 
Mr. Doraiswamy is dead or alive. It is    a very 
serious matter. Madam, you     direct the 
Home Minister. He is sitting    quiet    over the 
matter. He is not telling us what is happening   
in   Kashmir. He should know that it is a very 
important matter. The House is  sure  that  he  
will come forward  with a statement and take 
the House into confidence. Three terrorists   
have already   been released and     Mr. 
Doraiswamy's  fate is still  not  known. 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: I am sure 
the Home Minister has noted your concern 
and he is going to take action. 

SHRI SURESH KALMADI: There has 
been  no action  so  far. 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN; Now, 
clarification on Minister's statement. 

SHRIMATI JAYANTHI NATARAJAN 
(Tamil Nadu): Madam, we are waiting for 
long to say something and... 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: No, I am 
not allowing anybody. 

SHRI DIPEN GHOSH: Here, the question 
of Centre-State relations does not come in the 
way because Jammu and Kashmir is under 
the President's rule. A Central Government 
official has been abducted and we don't know 
whether he is dead or alive. Government 
owes an explanation to Parliament. 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Now the 
clarifications. Shri J. P. Mathur will ask 
clarifications. 

CLARIFICATIONS ON THE STATE-
MENT REGARDING ESCAPE FROM 
THE CUSTODY AND SUBSEQUENT 

DEATH OF SHRI SHANMUGAM, ONE 
OF THE ACCUSED IN THE RAJIV 
GANDHI ASSASSINATION. CASE 

SHRI SANTOSH BAGRODIA (Rajas-

than): Madam, at the moment, we are talking 
something about the enquiry made on the 
century's most sensational assassination in the 
world. A gentleman who was not only most 
popular in the world, but who was also going 
to change the world's economic order, who 
was concerned about the world's poorest of 
the poor was murdered. In regard to that 
ghastly 
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assassination, a Special Investigation Team 
was formed to investigate into it. We are 
discussing the manner in which and the 
sincerity with which this particular team has 
actually worked. The day this particular news 
was published in the newspapers, I hung my 
head with shame. I was wondering in what 
kind of a country I am living. 

 
SHRI SANTOSH BAGRODIA: Madam, 

this is a very serious matter. 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: I know that 
this is a very serious matter. That is why I 
want pointed questions. 

SHRI SANTOSH BAGRODIA: Madam, I 
request you not to stop me. Let me speak. 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Don't get 
agitated. Please ask questions. Let the 
Minister have time to answer. 

SHRI  SANTOSH     BAGRODIA: We 
can wait for days and monrhs together for the 
Minister's reply. Please let me speak what I 
want to speak. This is a very serious matter. 
Now, I am expressing my feelings. I strongly 
maintain that I am not asking for the 
resignation of the Home Minister. This is my 
humbleness. This kind of happenings demand 
a very serious  attention. 

SHRI KAMAL MORARKA (Rajas-than): 
Why are you being humble? Why don't you 
ask the Home Minister to resign? 

SHRI SANTOSH BAGRODIA: I    am 
not asking him to resign because he is not 
involved in this. The murder happened when 
your Government was in power... 
(Interruptions). 

SHRI KAMAL MORARKA: Madam, I 
object to it. The murder had taken place in 
the Congress (I) election meeting. Everyone 
knows about it... (Interruptions). We want to 
know who brought 

SHRI KAMAL MORARKA; The Special 
Investigation Team should first begin with 
interrogating the Congressmen. I would ask 
Mrs. Sonia Gandhi to expel the Tamil Nadu 
Congressmen from the party... 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN; Please, Mr. 
Morarka... (Interruptions). When I am on my 
feet.. 

 
SHRI SANTOSH BAGRODIA: They 

provoked  me  on  this... (Interruptions) 
SHRIMATI JAYANTHI NATARA-JAN 

(Tamil Nadu): When the Member told Mr. 
Bagrodia to ask for the Home Minister's 
resignation, he said that he didn't want the 
Home Minister to resign because the 
Government was not in power at that time. 

SHRI DIPEN GHOSH (West Bengal): 
Who was on power when Mrs. Gandhi was 
assassinated? She was in office as the Prime 
Minister. (Interruptions). 

SHRI KAMAL MORARKA: Madam, let 
me put the record straight. Mrs. Nata-rajan 
asks as to why did I ask the Home Minister to 
resign. Why should I do so? (Interruptions). 
Mr. Bagrodia said that he was not asking the 
Home Minister to resign, and this was his 
humbleness—I think he meant humility. I 
said 'Why don't you ask him to resign? Please 
ask him to resign'. Rajiv Gandhi was murder-
ed in a State where Mr. Bhisma Naram Singh 
was the Governor. He was murdered in an 
election meeting of the Congress 

 

the assassin there? Why are they politicising 
the issue?... (Interruptions). 
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[Shri   Kamal   Morarka] 
(I) where all these people were present. 
(Interruptions). But what has it got to do with 
Shanmugam's escape ? I am really very sorry. 
Everytime when the leader is assassinated, 
the Party calculates how many sympathy 
votes it would get. They are shedding 
crocodile tears. 

SHRI SANTOSH BAGRODIA: What is 
all this, Madam?  (Interruptions'). 

SHRI KAMAL    MORARKA; After 
Mr. Rajiv Gandhi's assassination, everybody 
was thinking how many sympathy votes the 
Party would get. (Interruptions) I have got 
the greatest respect to the memory of Shri 
Rajiv Gandhi, though he was not my friend. 
(Interruptions). 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN; Mr. 
Morarka, please take your seat. 

SHRI KAMAL     MORARKA: They 
cannot do this. The question here is, how did 
Shanmugam run away? (Interruptions). 

SHRIMATI    IAYANTHI    NATARA- 
JAN: We don't want to hear Mr. Morarka. 

SHRI KAMAL MORARKA: Neither do I 
want to hear you. 

SHRIMATI IAYANTHI NATARA-IAN: 
I am telling the Chair. 

SHRI   KAMAL     MORARKA: I   am 
also telling the Chair. (Interruptions). We ate 
not used to ihis uneducated broadside from 
the other side. for  heaven's sake, let us stick 
to the question of Shanmugam's escape. The 
question whether Rajiv Gandhi was a ?reat 
man or not is not under discussion   
(Interruptions). 

SHRI R. K. DHAWAN (Andhra Pradesh). 
Madam, Mr Kamal Morarka has been a 
Member of this House for a number of years. 
He had been a Minister also. Of course, the 
mysterious death of shanmugam is shameful 
and shocking. But equally shocking is the 
behaviour of Mr. Kamal Morarka. Why is he 
so littery about it? Why is he getting agitated. 
Why 

does he bother about all these things? He had 
been a Minister. He had dealt with the case. 
Mr. Bagrodia is only seeking a clarification. 
(Interruptions). Does Mr. Morarka mean to 
say that we should not even mention our 
leader? What is all this? (Interruptions). 

SHRI KAMAL MORARKA: Everytime 
there is a discussion, the enquiry will go on 
for months and years. 

SHRI R. K. DHAWAN: Let it go on 
for years. 

SHRI KAMAL MORARKA: The main 
point is, one of the suspects escaped. It is we 
who should be attacking them. They are not 
attacking the Government. On the other hand, 
they are trying to make out that they are 
showing a favour to us. (Interruptions). 

SHRI    R. K. DHAWAN: Why is   he 
getting so much agitated? This only shows 
how serious he is about it. 

SHRI KAMAL MORARKA: You are 
not serious. (Interruptions). Mr. Bagrodia 
said that he was not asking for the Home 
Minister's resignation. He said that he was 
being humble, as if the Home Minister 
belonged to our Party. Whom is he obliging? 

SHRI SANTOSH BAGRODIA: He be-
longs to the whole country. 

SHRI      KAMAL     MORARKA; The 
whole Government should resign on this 
issue. (Interruptions). 

SHRI R. K. DHAWAN: Perhaps, Mr. 
Morarka did not understand what Mr. Bag-
rodia  was  saying. (Interruptions). 

SHRI KAMAL MORARKA: Yes. I did 
not understand. I go by the Oxford 
Dictionary. (Interruptions). 

THE  DEPUTY  CHAIRMAN: All  of 
you, please sit down. Let Mr. Bagrodia 
continue. I humbly request you, not in 
humility. Let there be no interruptions. Mr. 
Bagrodia, please look at the Chair and make 
your points and then let the-Home  Minister   
answer. (Interruptions). 



 

SHRI YASHWANT SINHA    (Bihar): Shri 
Ram Awadhesh Singh is insulted. 

SHRI SANTOSH BAGRODIA: I    am 
trying to explain what actually happened. 
Probably, the Home Minister, after visiting 
the site also, could not get what has happened. 
I feel even sorry when the hon. Home 
Minister in his statement has said that the 
investigation by SIT was proceeding on the 
right lines. I do not know if it is a right line. 
The minimum that can be done is, the SIT 
chief should be sacked and changed im-
mediately. I am going to give further details. 
What I am presuming from the report and 
from the information 1 am getting from 
private sources in that area of Tamil Nadu is, 
they have been telling me that SIT oeople are 
in collusion, in collaboration, they are abso-
lutely a part of these people who were 
involved in this assassination. {Interruptions). 

SHRI DIPEN GHOSH: This is a serious 
charge on the ruling party. 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Let the 
Home Minister say when he is replying. 
Please, have order in the House. I have said 
ihtt I have 30 names and a few more   names   
are   coming. 

SHRI    SANTOSH     BAGRODIA:  It 
appears that Shanmugham was having a 
lavish  dinner   in   the   dak  bungalow or 
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inspection bungalow, as if a foreign dignitary 
had been invited for a lunch or dinner. After 
dinner somebody from SIT, some people who 
were looking after him, they have actually 
taken him out and handed him over to some 
people, who have taken him away, murdered 
him and hanged him somewhere near the 
inspection bungalow. This particular case has 
happened on 19th and on 20th morning 
everything was published in the papers. Early 
morning we knew what had happened all the 
way in the inspection bungalow. Whereas the 
police authorities or the investigating team 
could not locate the dead body themselves, 
somebody, some local village administrator 
gave the information that some dead body was 
hanging from the tree which was hardly two 
to three kilometres away from the inspection 
bungalow. And still we are trying to say that 
SIT's work is all right, it is on the right line. Is 
it the right line? Think of a scene, when this 
man was kidnapped. When he has gone out, 
he was not handcuffed whereas the 84-year-
old Kirloskar was handcuffed. This man 
whose character was well known, a man who 
was a well-known smuggler of that area... 
(Interruptions). I do not care. It was the police 
department. (Interruptions). Well, if you go 
on interrupting me like this, I will have to go 
on replying and then you will be suffering, 
there will be more and  more   delay. 

This bad character, I should say,  was 
treated in such a way, I wish all the cul 
prits in the country are treated in that 
fashion. 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN; I don't think 
you should wish that. You should not wish 
that all the culprits should be treated   like  
that. 

SHRI   SANTOSH  BAGRODIA: I wish 
because this is the way he was treated. He was 
given a lavish dinner, then taken out and very 
easily given to the people who wanted him. 
Everything happened in a very dramatic way. 
It appears, they wanted that the mos 
timportant witness in this case should be 
eliminated. It was   not   a   human   bomb   
which  killed 
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[Shri Santosh Bagrodia] 
Rajiv Gandhi, beyond that human bomb there 
was a link and that link has now been broken. 
It is not a question of reaching up to Jaffna. I 
do not know whether we would have reached 
Jaffna, but now we can never reach Jaffna in 
view of the most important link having been 
broken. This was already established at that 
lime... that these people who assassinated 
Rajiv Gandhi or the human bomb and other 
accomplices, all stayed there and they were 
the guests of this individual known as 
Shanmugam. In fact, when we talk of the 
statement, most unfortunately, the news 
reports, etc., give much more information 
than the statement. I wish the statement could 
have been more informative so that we could 
know more but, instead of knowing more, we 
are only trying to guess what was 
happennig.... (Interruptions)... It was this 
gentleman on the basis of whose information, 
at whose instance, all the concealed material 
which was lying in his own farm, in his 
coconut grove, was taken out. In spite of that, 
this man was not considered to be so 
important by the SIT. In fact, I have also 
heard that these officers were enjoying liquor 
while this man was escaping from the other 
room. This may please be clarified. 

Madam, I am losing my entire confi 
dence in the SIT. It is for this reason 
that a new team may be formed or, 
some officers have to be changed and 
new officers should be appointed. And 
the officers who are directly responsi 
ble... 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Now you 
please ask your questions because Mrs. 
Jayanthi Natarajan is the next speaker. 

SHRI SANTOSH BAGRODIA: I am 
asking questions. I would like to know from 
the honourable Home Minister if he is going 
to arrest all the officers who are responsible 
for this escape and make further inquiries 
about their actions. In fact, the Home Minister 
has said that a magister'al    inquiry     has   
been     ordered 

under   section   176    Cr. P. C. I    cannot 
     understand   why   all   these  inquiries   and 

why an immediate  decision is not  taken 
about   arresting   them.... (Interruptions) 

SHRI   KAMAL      MORARKA: The 
entire police  force  hns to be   arrested! 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Mr. 
Bagrodia, you have been speaking from 12. 
30 onwards. 

SHRI SANTOSH BAGRODIA: I have 
been speaking from 12. 30 onwards because   
others   were    also    speaking. 

THE   DEPUTY  CHAIRMAN: Don r 
listen  to  others; put your questions. 

SHRI SANTOSH BAGRODIA; It also 
says that Shanmugam, the man who was 
found deadJnally, according to the police  
appeared depressed after i meeting. His uncle, 
Seetha..., or whatever it is... 

THE DEPUTY  CHAIRMAN: Don't 
mind the name; his uncle. 
SHRI SANTOSH BAGRODIA; He has been 
allowed to meet Shanmugam in the inspection 
bungalow. Is it normal practice that a person 
who is a culprit is allowed to meet his uncle? 
It  was all darkness outside the bungalow and 
in that darkness a relative comes and then the 
culprit escapes. This is a very suspicious   
matter. 

SHRI KAMAL MORARKA: Lfte a Hindi   
film!... (Interruptions)... 

THE   DEPUTY  CHAIRMAN: Order, 
please. Now, Mrs. Jayanthi  Natarajan. 

SHRI SANTOSH BAGRODIA: I am 
coming   to   the   end. 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN; Now the 
end is over. I have already called Mrs. 
Jayanthi Natarajan. 

SHRI SANTOSH BAGRODIA; Only one 
more sentence: If necessary, on a serious 
matter like this I recommend that we should 
have a Joint Parliamentary Committee to 
further investigate this   matter. 

SHRIMATT JAYANTHI NATARAJAN; 
Madam, the   clarifications that    I 
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set ^ from the   Home    Minister  are... 
(Interruptions). 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Order now 
at least. Have courtesy for a lady. 

SHR1MATI JAYANTHI NATARA-JAN: 
Madam, I would like to preface my 
clarifications by saying that personally I have 
the greatest respect for the Home Minister, 
and what I am saying is in relation to the 
investigation and it has nothing to do with 
him personally. 

Tlie fact is that I have said it from the first 
day, from the very first day when we talked 
about the assassination, when Rajya Sabha 
was called to meet for a brief two-day 
session, that I feared that attempts were being 
made to whitewash the case, that there would 
be a cover-up. I would like to repeat that 
charge with a sense of responsibility even 
today. 

I  am  greatly sorry  to say    that    even today 
after reading  the statement  I  feel that that 

attempt is continuing. We must not    lose   
sight   of  the fact  that    what happened  is 

extremely  serious. It is not a lapse. It  is  
practically   a   death-blow to the investigation  

not only because  of the death of the most 
important suspect, a person who   could have   

given     more information, but   also   because  
it   shakes the confidence of the public in the 
process of investigation. If  we just   look  at  
it for a minute, this man who gave shelter to   

these   people, who   was   nobody until a 
couple of years  ago, suddenly became a 

millionaire, and the whole world knows that  
he became a millionaire because of his  LTTE   

connections, because  he    was involved in 
drug-running, in arms-trafficking, because  he  
was  helping the   LTTE to keep their lines of 

communication and smuggling      open      
during      the     IPKF operations. The whole 

world knows that he  was  this kind  of a man. 
The SIT brought  him in a  helicopter. This 

kind of a treatment is reserved for    high dig-
nitaries   of   this  land. That   was      the 

seriousness   with which  they  viewed this 
person. This  person was brought by    a 

helicopter. 

I just want to ask a pointed question. The 
newspaper reports say that there was a huge 
armed guard, the CRPF, armed police, the CBI 
officers all around the T. B. where he was 
staying. There are very many discrepancies which 
I will just point out. When he was important 
enough to have been brought by a helicopter, 
where were all these armed, personnel when he 
was being kept in the travellers' bunglow in the 
night? Was not there a single armed policeman? 
Were there just two constables who took him out 
to wash his hands? Where were the constables 
when he was washing his hands? How did he 
escape? It is very ! engagingly said, "under the 
cover of darkness. " Where were all these people? 
Where was the CRPF? Where was the armed 
police? Was not there a single gnard all around? 
My pointed question is: What happened to all 
these people when the man was considered to be 
important  enough? 

Madam, the second part of it is that the 
whole theory of suicide seems to be a very 
convenient refuge because we must remember 
two aspects. Mr. Shanmugam had filed a writ 
in the High Court even before he was arrested 
saying that he was innocent, that he was an 
agriculturist and that he feared police 
harassment. After that he came voluntarily. 
We must not lose sight of the fact that he was 
not arrested by the SIT. He was not caDtured 
in a dramatic fashion by the SIT. He surren-
dered to the SIT, It is not as if they made a 
tremendous and brilliant progress; they had 
not. Mr. Shanmugam surrendered to the SIT 
for reasons of his own, and he was willing to 
co-operate with them. He did co-operate with 
them. Why did the man who had surrendered, 
want to commit suicide? Th: 5 is  the reason 
why I suspect... 

SHRI P. UPENDRA (Andhra Pradesh): 
Why would  he escape? 

SHRTMATI JAYANTHI NATARA-JAN: 
I am coming to it in a minute. Why should he 
want to commit suicide? Why should he 
escape? He was cooperating with them. This 
is the reason, why I suspect foul-play. 
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[Shrimati Jayanthi  Natarajan] 
I have been saying this. Even last week I 

raised this issue in this House. It is well 
known that the lower ranks of the State police 
and other people have been infiltrated with 
the LTTE sympathisers. Tt is well known that 
there are political connections. It is well 
known that there are drug connections. 
Knowing all these things, to say that the man 
committed suicide is simply not an 
explanation. It is too facile. 

Madam, thirdly, the reason why I am 
saying that I think that there is a continuing 
attempt to cover it up and to take it very 
lightly is that even in the Home Minister's 
statement he says that after Mr. Shanmugam 
was found to have escaped, a case was 
registered under section 224, IPC. What is the 
need of registering under this? What is section 
224, IPC? I will just read it out to the House. 
Bear with me for a minute. Then you will see 
what a joke we are converting it into. Section 
224, IPC, is about resistance or obstruction by 
a person to his lawful apprehension. It reads; 

"Whoever intentionally offers any 
resistance or illegal obstruction to the 
lawful apprehension of himself for 
any offence with which he is charged 
or of which he has been convicted or 
escapes or attempts to escape from 
custody in which he is lawfully 
detained, shall be punished... " 

Nothing could be farther from the truth. 
The truth is that far from offering obstruction, 
the man surrendered. Then why would he 
attempt to escape? What is the point in 
booking a case under section 224? This is a 
joke. The reason why I am giving importance 
to this is that we are narrowing the scope of 
the inquiry. You are conducting an inquiry 
according to this case where there is nothing. 
The man is dead. May I know from the hon. 
Minister against whom he is going to 
proceed? He never tried to evade the arrest. 
He surrendered  himself. What is the  grand 
idea of 

booking him under section 224 when the man   
is  dead? 

Madam, you   look  at   section 221   of the  
Indian   Penal   Code. It says: 

"Whoever having a public servant 
legally bound as such a public servant 
to apprehend or keep in confinement 
any person charged with or liable to 
be apprehended for an offence, 
intentionally omits to apprehend such 
person or intentionally suffer such 
person to escape or aid such person to 
escape or attempt to escape will be 
punished. "' 

May I know from the hon. Minister why has 
he not registered the case under this section? 
Are you going to reward those officers "who 
have allowed him to escape? Are they not 
public servants under the IPC? Are you going to 
take any action against those officers or are you 
just going to let them go scot-free after having a 
case against the man who is already dead, when 
he himself had surrendered? This is the reason 
why I suspect that there is an attempt to cover it 
up. Then, the hon. Home Minister said; 
"Another case is registered under section 174, 
Criminal Procedure Code. " I will not take the 
time of the House to refer to it. Section 174 
deals with suicide, suicide happening in 
custody. You have already come to the 
conclusion that it is a suicide; then, what is the 
point of an inquiry? We are charging on the 
floor of this House with a sense of 
responsibility that the man was allowed to 
escape, that the LTTE or whoever it is, 
interested parties called on him and murdered 
him. My colleagues have pointed it out at great 
length. The way in which he was found, the tree 
on which he was hanging, the fact that he could 
not have had access to a rope, all these things 
point out to the fact that he could not have 
killed himself, quite apart from the fact that he 
was not having a motive or reason or a 
necessity to kill him-i self. So what is the point 
of having a I case under section 174? What is 
the point of ordering a Magisterial inquiry?' The  
scope  of Magisterial inquiry is also, 
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limited to the cause of death. Here we are not 
concerned with the cause of death. We want 
to know how he was allowed to escape. I 
would like to ask the hon. Home Minister, a 
specific clarification, whether he would 
consider reviewing the whole thing, booking 
the officers under the appropriate section and 
more importantly expanding the terms of 
reference of the Verma Commission so that it 
can also study all these things and not allow 
these things to go by default. According to the 
statement, 1 find that they have already 
foreclosed their various avenues. They have 
already foreclosed the very areas which are 
agitating the Members and the entire public of 
this country by assuming that it was a suicide, 
by assuming that he escaped. These are 
dangerous assumptions and they will stop the 
whole inquiry. 

Finaly, I want to ask the Home Minister 
whether a particular newspaper report is 
corect. It says: "During his interrogation 
Shanmugam had revealed that the police 
personnel at various levels had always been 
hand in glove with the militants in ensuring 
their uninterrupted travel to and from 
Vedaranyam Coast in return for handsome 
rewards and the quid pro quo worked very 
well. He had also given graphic details about 
how the LITE miiltants had established 
intimate links with the chauvinist groups and 
politicians. " This hag been the burden of my 
song for days. They said that Shanmugam 
revealed this. Clearly there is a powerful 
nexus operating which wanted Shanmugam  
out  of the way. 

SIT does not have the power to investigate 
this kind links. This is a serious lapse. This 
matter is much worse than that. Every time I 
have raised this issue I had threatening phone 
calls. I had threatening letters to kill me. I do 
not want to dramatise it. I will not go into the 
detals There are people who do not even want 
me to raise the issue on the floor of the 
House. There are powerful interests at stake. 
The moment I said something about probing 
the links of the politicians, the official  organ 
of 

the DMK Muntsoli    made    a    personal 
attack on me by commenting on that. 

SHRI V. GOPALSAMY (Tamil Nadu): I 
object to this. 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: How would 
you know that she reecived threatening phone 
calls? It is her experience which she is  
narrating. 

1. 00 P. M. 
SHRI V. GOPALSAMY: It is not relevant   

to   this   subject. (Interruptions). 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Please 
understand the seriousness of the subject. Just 
a minute. (Interruptions). I have been hearing 
her very carefully. She says that there is a 
conspiracy to eliminate everyone. Even if 
somebody raises the issue on the floor of the 
House, he or she receives a telephone call 
threatening life. Why do you mind it? 

SHRI V. GOPALSAMY: She has referred 
to the official organ of our party. 

SHRI S. JAIPAL REDDY (Andhra 
Pradesh): She made a reference to the official 
organ of the DMK which is uncalled   for. 

SHRTMATI JAYANTHI NATARA-JAN: 
Why?     (Interruptions). 

SHRI S. JAIPAL REDDY: It is not 
relevant, not   on   this   question. 

SHRI V. GOPALSAMY: That is my 
point. 

SHRIMATI JAYANTHI NATARA-JAN. 
Madam, I do not want to divert my attention. I 
won't go into that. The fact is that it is not 
irrelevant and that they have made a noiss in 
this House about the same Rajiv Gandhi 
murder case and said, "There is no progress 
being made. Why have you not arrested Siva-
rasan and Subha? What is the problem? There 
are political leaders who are involved and that 
is why there are obstacles". (Interruptions). 

SHRI   V. GOPALSAMY: Find   that out. 



 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: That is what  
she  is  saying. 

SHRIMATI JAYANTHI NATARA-JAN: 
I am saying that there are obstacles in the 
investigation of the SIT. I am saying that the 
SIT is not able to ... (Interruptions). 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN; Why are 
you taking it on you?    She is asking the 
Home   Minister. 

SHRI V. GOPALSAMY: Because she 
referred to   the DMK party. 

SHRIMATI JAYANTHI NATARA-JAN: 
Madam, after saying that, that newspaper, 
instead of attacking whatever I said in the 
House, made a personal attack on me. I am 
just commenting on that. Why can't I say 
that? (Interruptions). 

SHRI   V. GOPALSAMY; There     are 
newspapers... (Interruptions) the DMK party 
and other parties. Is it a matter to  refer here? 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: If some-
body made an attack on you or a newspaper, 
you can refer if you like. But you cannot stop 
her from doing it. I won't permit it. 
(Interruptions). I am not permitting it. I can 
tell hon. Members that I am not permitting 
interruptions. Let her finish. We have no 
time. 

SHRIMATI JAYANTHI NATARA-JAN; 
The only reason why I said it is, it amounts to 
a breach of privilege. I am bringing a matter 
to the notice of this House where I am feeling 
there is something that agitates me. I am 
raising an issue on the floor of the House. 
When 

an attack is made on me, it is a breach, of 
privilege. Therefore, it is not irrelevant. 

SHRI V. GOPALSAMY: You have to get 
permission from the Chair to raise the issue of 
breach of privilege. We do not object to that. 
Let her bring a privilege  issue. 

SHRLMAT1 JAYANTHI NATARA-JAN: 
I do not need your permission. Madam, the 
only point I am trying to make is that there 
are all  kinds of obstacles to the functioning of 
the SIT. There is a tremendous network 
including politicians. Therefore, the SIT may 
not be able to do its job properly. The 
Government has to take into account the great 
seriousness, the kind of pressures that have 
been brought to bear, national and 
international. And therefore, they have to 
suitably amend the terms of reference. I 
request the Home Minister to let us know 
what steps he is going to take to get over 
these kinds of pressures. Thank  you, Ma-
Jam. 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Shri Ajit P. 
K. Jogi. He is not there. Mr. Chaturanan 
Mishra. He is also not there. Mr. Dipen 
Ghosh, Mr. Chaturanan Mishra allowed you 
to speak in his   place. 

SHRI SATYA PRAKASH MALA-VIYA 
(Uttar Pradesh): Mr. Chaturanan Mishra 
belongs to the CPI. He belongs to the CPM. 

THE      DEPUTY     CHAIRMAN: A 
Member can ask any other Member to speak 
in his place. Are you speaking now. Mr. 
Dipen Ghosh? If not, your name will come 
later. Now, Dr. Ratna-kar Pandey. 
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SHRI V. GOPALSAMY: Madam, he made   a  
reference... (Interruptions). 

DR. RATNAKAR PANDEY: Yes, it is   a   
fact. 

SHRI V. GOPALSAMY: I am not objecting to 
it. But when he is building up a case against this, 
he is referring to me. (Interruptions) 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: If any of your 
privileges is affected, I will protect it. But don't 
interrupt him every now   and   then... 
(Interruptions). 

MISS SAROJ KHAPARDE (Maharashtra): 
Madam, every now and then he gets up and 
speaks like this. When Jayanthi was speaking, he 
did not say anything. Now Mr. Pandey is 
speaking, I do not know why he is interrupting 
him. 

SHRI V. GOPALSAMY: Would you 
tolerate if any reference is made against 
you?     Don't   preach   sermons to me--------  
(Interruptions)... 

MISS SAROJ KHAPARDE: Every now and 
then you get up and interrupt him. This is not 
correct.... (Interruptions).... 

SHRI V. GOPALSAMY: What is it he is 
driving at?... (Interruption).. Yes, Prabhakarsin 
himself was also speaking with Mr. Raiiv 
Gandhi. His photograph also appeared in the 
press. What doei   it mean? 
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SHRI S. JAIPAL REDDY: Madam, 

what is this? How can he make such 
allegations?  {Interruptions)... Madam, 
this cannot go on record. (Interruptions).... This. 
cannot go on record. (Interruptions)... 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: I will see the 
record. (Interruptions)... I will see  the  record. 
(Interruptions).... 

SHRI S. JAIPAL REDDY: I am on a point of 
order, Madam. (Interruptions) ... On   a point  of  
order. (Interruptions). 

♦Expunged as ordered by the Chair. 



 

THE DEPUTY     CHAIRMAN; Yes 
(Interruptions)... 

SHRI S. JAIPAL REDDY: On a point of  
order. (Interruptions)... 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Yes, on a 
point of order. (Interruptions).... 1 said, 
please sit down. (Interruptions). On a point of 
order. (Interruptions)... Please. 

 
SHRI S. JAIPAL REDDY: On a point of 

order. Shri Ratnakar Pandey has made 
gratuitous references and levelled unfounded 
and unwarranted allegations against an 
hon'ble Member, Shri Ram Jethmalani. All 
the references must be expunged from the 
record. That is the point of order and we 
would like to mention, Madam, that we have 
enough of this nonsense in this House for the 
last few days. We shall no longer tolerate the 
nuisance of the shoiiting brigade. 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: See, you 
stood up on a point of order. I will look at the 
record and I will tell Shri Ratnakar Pandey.. 
Nonsense  of  the shouting  brigade 

What is the meaning of the nonsense of the   

shouting   brigade?   {Interruptions')... 

He should withdraw it. (Interruptions^... 
What do you think about it ? He should He 
should withdraw it. (Interruptions)... 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: I wil! look 
at the record. Anything unparliamentary will 
not go on record when 1 am presiding. 
(Interruptions)... It will not go on record. 
Anything unparliamentary will not go on 
record. (Interruptions)... 

SHRI S. JAIPAL REDDY: Madam, 
nonsense is parliamentary. I am saying that  
Ahluwalia   is  a   * (interruptions)... 

SHRI S. S. AHLUWALIA: If it is a 
parliamentary one, then you are the biggest * 
of this House. (Interruptions)... You are the 
biggest * of this House. (Interruptions)... 

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI (Kama taka): 

Madam, please allow me one minute. 
Madam, since 1988 Shri Ratnakar Pandey has 
been making all kinds of suggestions and 
insinuations against me. I have always 
excused him because he is an * person and 
his place is not here; his place   is elsewhere. 

*Expunged as ordered by the Chair. 
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THE LEADER OF THE HOUSE (SHRI S. 

B. CHAVAN): Madam, this this is equally 
objectionable. The honourable Shri Ram 
Jethmalani has made a charge that Shri 
Ratnakai Pandey is an * person. It is not 
proper... 

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: I repeat ft, he  
is   * 

SHRI S. B. CHAVAN: I am not addressing 
you, I am addressing the Chair. T am 
requesting you, Madam, a sitting Member of 
the House should not allege against   another 
sitting Member... 

SHRI MENTAY PADMANABHAM 
(Andhra Pradesh): What about their charges?' 

SHRI S. B. CHAVAN: You are taking 
objection to his speech, that he is making 
allegations. You are also doing the   same. 

DR. NAGEN SAIKIA (Assam): On a point 
of order. When Mr. Ratnakar Pandey was 
speaking, Mr. Jaipal Reddy made some 
comment. Just after that 1 saw Mr. Ratnakar 
Pandey trying to can* cature Mr. Jaipal 
Reddy's handicap. 1 think that is not proper. 

MISS. SAROJ KHAPARDE; He    did not 
say a word about him. 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: I didn't hear 
anything like that. 

'Expunged   as  ordered  by the  Chair. 

DR NAGEN SAIKIA: He was carri-
caturing Mr. Jaipal Reddy. Mr. AbJu-walia 
asked Dr. Ratnakar  Pandey not to 

j      do it. Then only he stopped it. 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: I didn't hear 
it. I can assure you he will never 

DR. NAGEN SAIKIA: He    was    cari-
caturing   him. 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: No, he wilt 
never do that. 

(Interruptions) 

SHRI VISHVJIT P. SINGH (Maha-
rashtra): I had anticipated this to happen. I 
knew that Mr. Jaipal Reddy was going to be 
the Leader of the Opposition in the Upper 
House and I anticipated this. I knew that the 
level of debates in the House would go down. 
(Interruptions). 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN; Please sit 
down. Don't interrupt. (Interruptions) I say 
please sit down. Nothing of these 
interruptions will go on record. (Inter-
ruptions). It appears that nobody is serious to 
discuss this matter because everybody  is  
arguing  things which     are 
not concerned with the subject. I would 
request Members in earnestness, looking at 
the seriousness of the murder of a great leader 
of this country, Rajiv Gandhi, please be 
serious. (Interruptions) No, I  am not 
allowing anything. 

SHRI DIPEN GHOSH: I have a point of  
order... 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN. What is  the  
point of order? 
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SHRI DIPEN GHOSH: Shri Jaipal Reddy 
has been nominated as Leader of the 
Opposition by the Chairman of the Rajya 
Sabha. By making an oblique reference to the 
nomination of Shri Jaipal Reddy as Leader of 
the Opposition Mr. Vishvjit Singh has 
downgraded the quality of nomination by the 
Chairman of the iRajya Sabha. He has alleged 
that he had apprehended that as soon as Mr. 
Jaipal Reddy was nominated Leader of the 
Opposition the quality of the debates would 
go down. That was his allegation. Shri Jaipal 
Reddy was nominated as Leader of the 
Opposition by the Chairman of the Raiya 
Sabha.... 

SHRI V. G OPALS AMY: He must 
withdraw that or it should not go on record. 

SHRI DIPEN GHOSH: He should 
apologise. 

SHRI MOHAMMED AFZAL alias 
MEEM AFZAL: He  should  apologise. 

SHRI DIPEN GHOSH; It should be 
expunged. 

(Interruptions). 
SHRI VISHVJIT P. SINGH: I can only do 

it if you allow me to speak. Will you sit down  
for a minute? 

Madam, I respect the conventions of this 
House. Never have I levelled allegations 
against the Chair. Madam, the Chairman of 
the House is governed by certain rules and 
regulations. The rules are quite clear. It Is for 
the Opposition to choose whom they want as 
their leader and the Chairman has done that. 
He has acted according to the letter written to 
him by Shri V. P. Singh. It is not the personal 
choice of the Chairman. I am not levelling 
anything against the Chair. I have great 
respect for the Chairman He is like my uncle... 
(. Interruptions)... 

SHRI V. GOPALSAMY: Madam, what is 
this uncle and cousin?... (Interruptions)... 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN; Pleas*, 
order, order... (Interruptions)... It is very 
unfortunate. We had started the discussion on 
the murder of Shanmugam 

or his escape and now  we have got involved  
in something  else  which  is    not 
relevant   at   all      ____ (Interruptions)... 
So, please take your seat ----------  (Interrup 
tions)... 1 will not allow anything irrele 
vant to go on record.... (Interruptions). 
... Please sit down... (Interruptions)... 
SHRI MURLIDHAR CHANDRA- 
KANT BHANDARE (Maharashtra); 
Would the Opposition Members be satis 
fied if I were to call you aunty... (Inter 
ruptions)... 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN; I would 
never be that,.. (Interruptions)... 

SHRI M. S. GURUPADASWAMY: 
Madam, I would like to inform the House 
that Shri Jaipal Reddy is as good aa 
Opposition leader as myself; may be better     
than  me... (Interruptions)... 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Now please, 
we are not discussing the leadership of the 
Opposition. We are not discussing anything 
except the supposed murder or suicide or 
escape of Shanmugam. Please understand the 
seriousness of the situation. I request 
everybody to confine himself to this 
question.... (Interruptions).. 

SHRI S. VIDUTHALAI VIRUMBI (Tamil 
Nadu): Madam, what about the aspersions 
cast against the Opposition leader... 
(Interruptions)... 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: I will look 
into the record... (Interruptions)... 
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THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: You want  to 
have  the lunch hour? 
SOME  HON. MEMBERS: Yes... 

(Interruptions)... 
THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: All right. The 

House now stands adjourned till 2-30  P. M. today. 

The House then adjourned for lunch at thirty-one 
minutes past  one  of  the  clock. 

The House reassembled after lunch at thirty-
three minutes past two of the clock. The Vice-
Chairman (Dr. Nagen Saikia)  in the Chair. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (DR. NAGEN 
SAIKIA): Hon'ble Members, we shall have to 
strictly maintain the time of the House and 
therefore, I would request every Member to 
complete his clarifications within three minutes. I 
shall ring the bell and if somebody goes on 
speaking even after my ringing the final bell, then 
nothing will go on record. Now, nobody will  be 
allowed to make a speech. You have to ask for 
clarifications only. Yes, Dr. Ratnakar  Pandey. 

DR. RATNAKAR    PANDEY; You 
have to  see to my interest  also. None should 
interrupt me. 

 

Do   not   behave   like   this. Please    sit 
dawn.... {Interruptions)... 

Do not argue with me. After I give a ruling, 
do not raise it again... (Interruptions)... 
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THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (DR. NA-GEN 

SAIKIA): You ask the clarification. You should not 
make a speech. 

 



 

SHRI KAP1L VERMA (Uttar Pradesh;: Mr. 
Vice-Chairman 1 am grateful to you for giving 
me this opportunity to speak. 1 need not 
emphasise the great concern caused in this 
House and in the country. Serious doubts have 
been raised on the conduct of investigation 
and about the confidence and seriousness 
attached by SIT to this kind of investigation. I 
would say that the escape is, in fact, a stunt. It 
is most unfortunate that it has happened in the 
presence of senior officials of CBI. And it is 
the version which is given to our Home 
Minister. I atn very sure he is second to none 
in his loyalty to Mr. Rajiv and his love for 
htm. His hands are tied in certain manners. I 
hope he Will open them up. I would like t0' 
know whether in view of what has happened, 
he would like to make any change in the 
apparatus, in the set up of STT. In fact the 
story is cooked up by the local people, local 
officials and I don't know who else is involved 
in. it. The whole story is very funny. It appears 
that — as has been pointed out by some of our 
colleagues — the involvement of LITE is 
there. When LTTE found that some very 
important disclosures are being made some 
very important evidences are being unearthed 
on the basis of information given by the man, 
they wanted to silence him. This is the logic. 
For that a conspiracy was hatched and this 
man was killed. I do not know. I hope rlhe 
Home Minister will  be  able to    tell 

us what exactly happened. In any case the 
suspicion is the LTTE saw to it that the man 
was removed from the scene so that no more 
evidence is available. Sir, it is most amazing 
that this man who was a well-known 
smuggler was kept in a house which was in 
his own home town. This place was not only 
a centre of smuggling activities but presence 
of LTTE was also there. A lot of LTTE 
people are functioning there. Sir, I would like 
to know from the Home Minister, who were 
the police guards and how many police 
guards were there. Why did they not chase 
him? Why did they not fire on him when he 
was trying to escape? I nlso want to know 
whether there were some police guards 
serving food to high CBI officials sitting in 
the adjoining room. Is it correct? I hope the 
Home Minister will be able to tell us. I want 
to know why this time lag is there in lodging 
FIR because it was about 10 o'clock when 
this incident took place and the report was 
lodged at 10-45 as shown in the statement. 
Please give me liberty of asking two or three 
pointed questions. I think the magisterial in-
quiry is hardly sufficient to fulfil the need. I 
would like to know whether the Government 
is prepared to have some kind of a judicial 
enquiry. The present enquiry only goes into 
the causes of death. We want to know how he 
escaped and we also want to see that 
responsibility is fixed. So, I would like to 
know whether the Government will institute a 
judicial enquiry or at least expand the terms 
of reference of the Verma Commission to 
include this particular point also in the terms 
of reference. I feel a magisterial enquiry will 
not meet the need  of the  hour. 

I would also like to know the steps the 
Government proposes to take to ensure that 
this  does  not  happen   again. 

The hon. Minister has made an extensive 
survey of the sea-coast and met a number of 
people, met the Governor and made an on-
the-spot study. He also visited the place 
where the assassination of Shri Rajiv Gandhi 
took place. In the second paragraph of the 
Minister's statement, it has been mentioned 
that the 
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[Shri Kapil Verma] SIT has made 
satisfactory progress. I would like to know 
the motive behind the assassination of Shri 
Rajiv Gandhi and whether there is some 
conclusive evidence because all sorts of 
stories are being made out. I would like to 
know whether the Government has any 
clinching evidence of LTTE's involvement. 
We all know it and the other day in response 
to the point raised by me, the Home Minister 
gave some indication of it. I would like to 
know whether there is some clinching 
evidence about involvement of LTTE. 
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THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (DR. NA-GEN 

SAIKIA): I shall request the Members not to 
repeat the questions. 
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THE        VICE-CHAIRMAN (DR. 

r NAGEN SA1KIA): Please conclude. You have 
already taken so much time. 
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SHRI SUKOMAL SEN (West Bengal): j     Sir, I 

would like to put only one question to the Home 
Minister, and    I    ana •j     coming to  that. 

From the statement anybody can understand that 
it is not a case of escape, hy Mr. Shanmugam. It is a 
case of handing him over by the police officials to 
certain killers who killed him successfully and 
silenced the key accused in the case. The key 
accused who turned into an approver, would have 
been very helpful in the investigation of the- case 
and finding out the truth. Nobody is willing to 
accept that he really escaped and hanged himself. It 
is a concocted story. It is not believable. 

In t'nis case in the entire police officials and the 
CBI officials who were in charge of this man, 
should have been put under arrest on the spot and 
put under trial. 

But why I stood up is to ask this question. When 
the Home Minister went to visit the spot, at Madras he 
held a Press i conference immediately after that. When 
he was asked about the proceedings of the SIT, he 
said  with great satisfaction that the SIT was 
proceeding in the right direc- < j tion. In astounded 
me when SIT itself has committed such a crime. The 
approver was highly indispensable and That man 
vanished from their own net, dragnet. At that time, the 
Home Minister gave a good conduct certificate to SIT. 
When the entire country is asto'. mded by the so-
called escape of this approver, the key accused, how 
and with what purpose, with what intention the Home 
Minister has given a good conduct certificate to SIT? 
What will be the significance and repercussions of his 
good conduct certificate i*wlf? 1 would like to know 
from the hon. Home Minister about this. 

"Although Shanmugam rose up the 
ladder in the world Of smuggling ever 
since he was initiated into it in the early 
80s, he only remained a low-key politician 
in the Congress Party till some time back. 
" 
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SHRI DIPEN GHOSH (West Bengal); 
Mr. Vise-Chairman, sir  you may please 
recall when we had discussed on the 3rd 
and 4th. June during a special session of 
Rajya Sabha about the security lapse in 
the assassination of Mr. Rajiv Gandhi, I 
'nas expressed my apprehension that even 
though the killer might be identified, the 
forces behind the killer would remain un 
identified. In the case of Mrs. Indira 
Gandhi's assassination also, I said that the 
killers were hanged but the forces behind 
the killers remained unidentified and the 
app i   expressed     at     that     time 
has now come out be true. The key accused-
turned-approver is dead. I used the word 
"dead" but actually I do hot know whether it 
was a suicide or tiomicfde. The hon. Home 
Minister made a statement yesterday which 
willy-nilly admits that it was a case of 
suicide. But through the statement, I wish 

sent hon. Home Minister would have 
remained on this side as he was on the 3rd 
and 4th June and faced this type of statement 
from the previous Govern-me;;; and sought 
clarifications. What would lie have doae He  
would have said: "Is it a statement coming 
from the Union 

Minister on this  important issue"? of     
Kenned)   was also    killed. Even in  the case 
of Mrs. Indira Gandhi lade-Tibetan      Border     
Police jawan kijled one of the assassins of 
Mrs, Indira  Gandhi   at the  very  same     
place  Ftei-   she   was   assassinated. Where. is   
thai     jawan   now?     Could  the would  
know\   vi by  t'nal   assassin WHS killed . by the. 
JTBP     iawan? As   far  as -my ia-the ITB1J 
iawan has taken retirement  and  is  now  
l iving  in   recluse in Himachal Pradesh in a 
very big farm. Wherefrom  he owned that 
farm? It is not so simple that a person, the key 
accused -who was  arrested had escaped and 
thereafter he comm tted suicide. It was a sheer 
case of murder of the key accused who turned 
out to Se an approver so that the forces behind    
the    assassination    remain unidentified. The 
Verma Commission has been asked  to  
inquire into  the  security lapses if there bad 
been any. The previous Prime Minister was 
right when he said that there must have been a 
security lapse: 

\ otherwise Mr. Rajiv Gandhi would not have 
been killed. He also said that if there was any 
act of commission or any act of omission that 
would be found out. May I know from the 
hon. Home Minister who are in charge of the 
security of the WJP persons like Mr. Rajiv 
Gandhi? You have a cell, a very small cell, a 
very powerful cell consisting of very 
important officials like the Director, IB, etc., 
which is responsible for maintaining and 
ensuring Vns security of the  Prime Minister 
anti VVIPs. That cell was responsible for 
maintaining and ensuring the security of 
Rajiv Gandhi. Whether on the part of that 
cell, which was responsible for maintaining 
and ensuring the security of Rajiv Gandhi, 
there was any act of commission or omission 
or security lapse, is being investigated by 
Justice Verma Commission. Under that very 
cell, the SIT is functioning. The SIT is 
functioning under the 

as officers whose conduct is being in-
vestigated by t'ne Verma Commission. ?t is 
proper to keep all these officers still in the 
office? Nowhere is the world does it happen. 
A judicial commission ha? been set up to 
inquire into any security lapse or act of 
commission or omission in maintaining 
security. There were certain officers who were 
responsible for ensuring -security. They are 
still in office and under, them, this SIT is' 
investigating and helping the Commission! 
And by this SIT investigation, would you 
succeed in idenli-fying the killers and the 
forces behind the killers? So, Mr. Vice-Cha; 

rman, I would put a simnle question. Is the 
Union Home Minister prepared to take action 
against Ihose senior officials vvha were 
responsible for maintaining and ensuring the 
security of Mr. Rajiv Gandhi and whose 
conduct is under investigation by the Verma 
Commission? And, is the Union Home 
Minister in view of this latest in cident. 
prepared to change the investigating agency 
and constitute a special investigation agency, 
a separate investigating agency, directly under 
the control of the Verma Commission?    
Thank  vou. 

SHRI JOHN F.: FF. RNANDES (Goa): 
Mr. Vice-Chairman, Sir. we all know that this 
investigation is ervy important hot only 
because it  inquires  into  the death 
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[Shri Jhon F. Fernanda] of a national 
leader and a world statesman but also because 
for the li. st time in the history of 
international terrorism, a human suicide 
bomber was used to kill a great leader. 

The statement of the hon. Minister appears 
very strange because Mr. Shanmugam 
surrendered himself for police protection on 
the 17th instant. It is strange that he sought to 
escape. Secondly, Mr. Shanmugam was in the 
custody and jurisdiction of the Central 
investigation authorities, that is, the CBI and 
the SIT. We cannot imagine how the two 
local police constables were used. A suspicion 
arises whether Mi. Shanmugam was given in 
the custody of the local police constables to 
have a false encounter. Was he handed over to 
their custody for execution? 

Thirdly, whenever a government official is 
charged with negligence of his duty, pending 
inquiry, either magisterial or departmental, it 
is the normal practice to suspend the official. 
There were six senior-most CBI officers 
present in the bungalow and no action has 
been taken to suspend them. I want a reply 
from the Heme Minister. Sir, we have read in 
the reports that way back in October 1990. 
there was a conspiracy hatched to assassinate 
Mr. Rajiv Gandhi and it was the duty of the IB 
and the RAW to alert the Government of India 
and Mr. Rajiv Gandhi about the conspiracy. I 
feel they have totally failed in their duty. The 
main task of the Verma Commission, 
according to the statement of the Home 
Minister, made on 17th instant, is to find out 
whether any indiivduals were responsible for 
his security and if there was any lapse on the 
part of these individuals. I think, the whole 
blame has been put on the Tamil Nadu police 
and the Central agencies have been kept away 
from its purview. I want to know from the 
hon. Minister whether he would expand the 
purview of the Verma Commission to include 
the IB, the RAW, the CBI and the STT under 
its purview. It was mentioned in the statement 
that Mr. Shanmug'fm was taken to the remote 
village on the l«fh instant and the search bad 
»tarted at 5 PM and it continued on the next 
day, 

on the 19th instant till 9 AM and some 
explosives and some transmitters were re-
covered. May I know from the hon. Minister 
whether this was the only booty that was 
recovered or he had disclosed some more 
information which would lead to more 
recovery ? 

DR. YELAMANCHILI SIVAJI (Andhra 
Pradesh): Mr. Vice-Chairman, Sir, this 
Government came into existence on the 
sympathy wave after the assassination of late 
Shri Rajiv Gandhi. But it is very unfortunate 
that this Government is so callous as far as 
investigation of assassination is concerned. It 
has been mentioned in the statement of the 
hon. Home Minister that Shanmugham was 
engaged in smuggling. Was he arrested under 
COFEPOSA or FERA ? It has been reported 
in a section of the press that Veda-ranyam and 
its surroundings in a s'retch of 50 kms. is a 
heaven for the LITE activities because these 
people can go to Jaffna within 30 to 40 
minutes in a motor-boat. Knowing pretty well 
that the LITE activities are going on for quite 
some time— for the last one decade or so in 
that area—the department was so callous and 
careless that they did not think it proper to 
handcuff the prime suspect, who was so much 
a source of information at Veda-ranyam. It has 
been reported that Mr. Shanmugham was not 
handcuffed while he was under the custody of 
the police. In 1975, during emergency, when 
we were arrested under MISA, the Govern-
ment did not bother to exempt us from 
handcuffing. But at the same time, a ner-son 
of Shanmugham's imnortance in the case 
could not be handcuffed It has nlso been 
reported that there is lack of coordination 
among the various agencie the SIT, the CBI 
and the State police. What steps have been 
taken by the Government to see that some 
coordination may come into existence ? The 
main point is. whether it is a homicide or a 
suicide. The postmortem report disclosed that 
there was no fracture of the hvold  bone "Tf he 
hvoid bone was not fractured, if may not be a 
suicide and it is a homicide. On the other 
hand, the body is close to the hr>"ch of the 
tree that it could not be denoted as a suicide or 
a hanging. Some thror»"ng might hare taken 
place and later there 
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is a possibility that the dead body may, be hanging 
even after the death took place. So it can be 
homicide too. Sir, Mr. iviala-viya mentioned that 
Shanmugam was a low-key activist in the Congress 
Party. Is it a fact that the previous Government, 
ruled by the Congress Party, used Shanmugam to 
trace Prabhakaran whenever wanted for 
negotiations ? I would like to know from the hon. 
Minister whether it is a fact or not. 

It is a sensational case. I would like to know 
from the Minister whether it is a fact that at 
Nagapattinam no expert, is there with a background 
of medical jurisprudence to conduct a post-mortem. 
In such' cases it is the normal practice j to shift the 
body to some other major hospital where an expert 
with medical jurisprudence is available to do a 
postmortem. In that case why was his body not 
shifted to either Madras or Thanjavur for post-
mortem ? I would like to seek these clarifications 
from the hon. Minister. 
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THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (DR. NAGEN 

SAIKIA): Now Mr. Saiaria. 
SHRI SHABBIR AHMAD SALARIA (Jammu 

and Kashmir): I associate myself with the sentiments 
expressed by the hon. Members on the conduct of the 
Special Investigation Team and also with regard to 
the apprehensions that they have expressed as to 
whether the Team will be able to deliver the goods. I 
would like to ask a few questions in this regard. First, 
the statement in para 6 says that a case of suicide was 
registered under section 174 of the Criminal 
Procedure Code and para 8 says that a magisterial 
enquiry has now been ordered under section 176, that 
is to say, now it is found that he was killed while in 
police custody. So. do I take it that the first version, 
which said that Shanmugam had run away and died 
as a result of committing suicide is incorrect and the 
second version that Shanmugam was killed while in 
police custody is corerct This needs to be exolained. 
Secondly, it is now clear that the Snecial 
Investigation Team is guilty of gross negligence 
resulting in the escape of the accused. Is it, "herefore, 
proner. in view of the seriousness of the charee and 
in view of the fact that the ex-Prime Minister's 
murder is under fn-vesfi'eation. to have the matter in 
the hands of such a Snecial Investigation Team ? The 
Home Minister mav be sa'is-fied with the conduct of 
the Team, but justice should not onlv be done. hut 
should also aonear to have been done. Nnw in the 
estimation of the Tndian peonle. this team is euilty of 
negligence. Under the circumstances, will it no* be 
proner for the Home Minister to consider 
replacement of the Team with a ' view to insnirino 
confidence in the minds of the people?     The hon. 
Minister should 
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consider and apply his mind to this question. 
These are not being said for formal purposes. 
These are crucial issues and they have to be 
taken seriously. If the story that the man 
escaped from custody is correct, then the team 
is guilty of gross ngeligence and if this is true, 
why has no action been taken against the 
persons responsible for the escape of that man 
and why have they not been hauled up in a 
departmental enquiry or suspended? If the 
story that he was killed while in police 
custody, the second version, is true, then the 
people concerned are liable to be taken to task 
or prosecuted according to law. I am sorry 
that we are in such a state of affairs that 
instead of finding the guilty, we are now 
discussing as to what happened to man who 
was either an accused or a witness. That is not 
very clear. It is not clear whether Mr. 
Shanmugam was an accused or a witness. If 
he was an accused, then why his statement 
under section  164 was not recorded ? 

Last but not least, a case under section 302 
has not been registered. I may tell the 
honourable Minister to take note of this that 
within sixty days the challan must go to the 
court filing which the challan will become 
ineffective. Much time has elapsed and this 
Team seems to be unaware of the law and it 
may stumble upon such legal impediments 
and, ultimately, there will be no case and 
these people will go scot-free. 1 would lit; the 
Home Minister to reply to these points. Thank  
you, Sir. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (DR. NAGEN 
SAIKIA): Mr. Kalita. Not here. Now, Mr. 
Bhuvnesh Chaturvedi. 

SHRI BHUVNESH CHATURVEDI . 
(Rajasthanl: Mr. Vice-Chairman, Sir, I am the 
21st person in the list and, therefore, you will 
pardon me if I repeat some of the points 
already made. But I would like to invite the 
attention of the hon. Home Minister and also 
the whole House to one thing, that is, the 
international svatem of killing persons and 
destroying evidence. In our continent, the first 
person who was murdered and in whose 
murder the evidence was destroyed was Mr. 
Liaquat Ali. He was murdered and the 
evidence  was destroyed. Then, Mr. 

Zia-ul-Haq was murdered and the evidence 
was destroyed. Then, in our coumry, Indiraji 
was murdered and the evidence was 
destroyed; Rajivji was killed and ihe 
evidence. Earlier, Olof Palme was murdered 
and the evidence was desttoyed; John F. 
Kennedy was murdered and the evidence was 
destroyed. So, I would like to invite the 
attention of the Home Minister to the 
international aspect of such murders and the 
political connections. Will he go into this 
aspect and establish the credibility of this 
Government which is at stake now ? My 
friends have said that the people are doubting 
the SIT and all that. My submission is that my 
party Government is at stake and it is in the 
dock now. The Home Minister has not cared 
to listen to us. Mr. Home Minister, your own 
Ministry, the Home Ministry, and your own 
system and your position are at stake; the 
position of the Government is at stake; and 
the position of the party is at stake. Kindly be 
serious about it and establish the credibility of 
this Government which is at stake because of 
these failures. 

You rushed to Madras to snow to the 
country and the whole world that you were 
very serious and the party functionaries 
organized a meeting. The Congress (I) 
President and the General Secretary and two 
Ministers asked the Government to take steps 
and, in. a way, they censured the Government. 
You rushed to Madras: to show to the people, 
to convince the people, that you meant busi-
ness. But what happened after two days ? You 
gave a character certificate to the SIT. It is 
very shameful and astounding. Mr. Home 
Minister, you told the Press, "I have to issue a 
statement in the House. I can't say anything 
now. ". But then you agreed to issue that 
certificate disheartening everybody and losing 
the credibility, your credibility and the credi-
bility of our party Government. It is not Rajiv 
Gandhi's murder. He is gone now... (Time 
Bell)... I will take iust two or three minutes. 
This is a sensitive issue and I want to put my 
views on record. 

Mr. Minister, you have said and claimed 
that Mr. Shanmugam had surrendered. It  is  
against all  human  psychology that 



251      Clarifications on the statement  [RAJYA SAB1 i .  \  i    I lie Custody and subsequent      252 
re. escape from death of Shri Shanrnugam, 

om  of the nccitsed in the Rajiv 
Gandhi's Assassination Case 

[Shri Bhuvnesh Chaturvedi] a person who 
surrenders can kill himself after a few days. 
When he surrendered, he was knowing the 
consequences of his surrender, and he knew 
how the Investigation Team would behave 
with him, how it would torture him. So, it is 
beyond human belief, it is against all human 
psychology, that a person who surrenders 
commits suicide. Therefore, Mr. Home 
Minister, you must give a convincing reply to 
this question because this is against nil human 
psychology. 

Then, you have accused, you have made 
charges, that he was a smuggler. We are not 
going to defend him. He may be a smuggler, 
he may be a notorious person. But was he 
ever prosecuted and convicted for these 
offences ? You must tell the House whether 
he was convicted for serious things and he 
was convicted for smuggling, and you must 
tell us in confidence. (Time  Bell rings) 

Please bear with me. In ordinary cases, in 
very ordinary cases the Sub-Inspector is 
suspended pending inquiry, and at least to 
create confidence among the people and 
among the countrymen you should have 
suspended your people till the investigation is 
completed. But you did not even suspend 
them. You issued a certificate. That means 
you are prejudicing the investigation against 
them, and the Magisterial and the CBI inquiry 
is just an eyewash. 

Sir, it is said in your statement that a white 
dhoti and white baniytm were found 

' abandoned  in  a  dry  canal  a little  away 
from the Inspection  Bungalow. Was     it 

• necessary thing that a person who is hmg-nig 
himself was giving a dhoti, an underwear and 
baniyan to the investigation agencies ? This is 
utterly unconvincing. You must convince 
us—not only convince the House but 
convince the whole country. The whole 
credibility of the Government is at stake. I 
will, therefore, expect that the Minister will 
take a serious stand on all these things before 
giving any certificate to the investigating 
agencies. 
... THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (DR. NAGEN 
SAIKIA): Shri Khaleelur Rahman. Please be 
brief as much as you can. 

SHRI MOHD. KHALEELUR RAHMAN 
(Andhra Pradesh): Thank you, Sir, for giving 
me this opportunity. Just two or  three  
questions  I  want   to    ask. 

First, the way in which Shanrnugam was 
( p o r t e d  to have escaped from the. urest in 
the presence of a battery of \ Mice officials 
leads to a strong suspicion that it cannot 
happen without the connivance of the police. 
I would, therefore, like to ask the hon. Home 
Minister whether the Government has taken 
any -Ueps to find out any nexus or link 
between Shanrnugam and  the  local  police. 

Second, it is mentioned in the statement that 
the Inquest Panchnama and postmortem were 
conducted on 20-7-91. Today i is 25-7-91. It 
is already six days. Why is there a delay in 
the inquest repor: and post-mortem report for 
such a long time)? 

Third, it is mentioned in the statement that 
Shanrnugam escaped under cover of darkness 
in spite of the fact that the policemen present 
there went out at once to chase the accused 
and raised an aJarm. I would, therefore, like 
to ask the hon. Home Minister whether 
torches were provided to the police personnel 
on duty and whether there is a residential or 
commercial area around the building where 
Shanrnugam was kept. 

Fourth, it is mentioned that the body of the 
accused was found hanging irom the branch 
of a tree by means of a rope. I would like to 
know, what is the height between the said tree 
branch and earth ? 
PROF. SOURENDRA BHATTACHAR- 

JEE (West Bengal): Mr. Vice-Chairman, Sir, I 
have great appreciation for the straight manner 
of talking of cur Home Minister, from my 
own experience regarding this aspect of the 
matter on different occasions. But in this 
particular case, I am constrained to say that 
the Minister did injustice not only to the 
Flouse but also to himself by presenting such 
a statement. The Home Minister went to 
Madras, went to Sriperumbudur. Perhaps the 
visit to the Shankaracharya was  in  
connected—might 

been to draw energy. But in any 
4. 06 P. M. case, he will inform us about 

the exact state of investment into 
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the assassination of Rajiv Gandhi. No doubt, 
there are references that 14 persons have so 
far been arrested. That is including 
Shanmugam or excluding him is not clear. In 
conclusion, he says something. That point has 
been referred to earlier. He told the press that 
he would not comment anything regarding the 
Shanmugam affair before making a statement 
before the Parliament. Is it now considered 
that it would have been proper on his part not 
to tell the press that the investigation was 
being conducted on correct lines? The matter 
of Shanmugam is a part of the investigation. It 
has gone awry, in diverse ways. The statement 
made by the Home Minister is baffling. The 
person surrendered; he was arrested and taken 
to a place for investigation. What was the 
investigation? Then he was given food at 9. 
45 p. m., six hours and forty-five minutes 
later. Then he went out to wash. Why in an 
inspection bungalow it was required to go 
outside ? That has to be explained. Has 
anybody accompanied him? From the 
statement of the Minister it is not clear 
whether the two Constables accompanied him 
outside the room. That should have been more 
categorically and clearly stated. And why has 
this division of job been made between the 
Dy. S. P. and two Inspectors in the room in 
which he was given the food? Then, the DIG 
and the SP in the other room, did they not 
constitute the team to look after the custody of 
Shanmugam? In Bengali, there. is a saving: 
Nahi Sisha suni na hasibe ekatha' It means. in 
Lanka, there is not a child even who would 
believe this word that thus was a case of 
suicide. Who have heard that before suicide, a 
person left his dhoti and baniyan in a dry 
canal? And then he was wearing a blue hingi 
as if he was against the white colour. And his 
underwear has been explained in a peculiar 
manner—there were stains which looked like 
something. How that came What was the 
explanation? Sir. I am just reminded of one 
book. T had an occasion to read the book, 
"The Day of the Jackal". That was in 
■connection   with     an     attempted     mur- 

der of Charles J. e Gaulle of France. The 
French Suerete frustrated that effort. But in 
our country, we are witnessing that the 
apparatus that was in charge of restraining 
the Jackal has totally failed. And the Home 
Minister owes it to the House to give a full 
explanation make a clean breast of it and not 
try to shield those who were responsible with 
the entire investigation process. Than', you. 
Sir. 

SHRI P. UPENDRA: Mr. Vice-Chair- 
man, before I put some questions, 3 would 
like to tell the House that while condem 
ning the laxity shown by the officials at 
the lower level in allowing Shanmugam 
to escape and then get killed or commit 
suicide, we should not gloss over the fact 
that some quick results were obtained by 
th2 SIT in the beginning, in the first few 
days. As many as 12 persons were appre 
hended and they were almost nearer to 
solving the mystery behind the assassina 
tion. At this stage this has happened. I 
personally feel that some officials at the 
lower level must have been tackled to 
sabotage the inquiry and scuttle the in 
quiry. Seme obvious questions have al 
ready been put. There are some more 
points       wrueh       need explanation. 
One is. when Shanmugam offered 
to     tell     everything,  expressed 
apprehensions about his own safety and the 
safety of his family. In spite of that, why 
adequate protection was hot given to him and 
why he was allowed to go to his own house at 
Kodiakkadu and spend three hours there to 
have lunch with his family? One of the press 
renorts says that no armed escort was sent 
with him became 'his nride would be hurt'. Tt 
is a very strange explanation given. Secondly, 
one report says that when he left travellers' 
bungalow, at that time two police constables, 
who were put on duty, were actually serving 
food to the officials in the next room. Nobody 
was with him at the'me. It is not correct to say 
that any policeman was there and he went out 
to wash and then. They say after he escaped, 
he visited one house. It is a police report. 
Whose house was it? Where did he wo? Who 
did he meet there? How is  it that between 8  
p. m. when he was 



[Shri P. Upendra] supposed to have escaped and 5 
a. m. when the hanging took place, in about 9 
hours, in a small town with less than 25000 po-
pulation, the  police could   not  apprehend him 
particularly when his body was found just two 
kilometres    from    Kodiakkadu? Then who were 
the local people entrusted with his protection? 
Whether any inquiry was made into their 
background and their antecedents I want to    
know. What disciplinary   action  has   been     
taken   against them? Another inexplicable thing 
is, the SIT—I referred to it on the     17th also 
when   this   question   came   up—is   giving daily 
publiicty to  whatever  they achieve. In a case of 
this type when so many loose ends are to be tied, 
why the SIT or the CBT thought it necesary to 
give uublicity on  a daily basis  to everything  they   
are doing? Even in this case also, the report «ays, a 
complete video-recording was done, from the time 
he was taken to Kodiakkadu of all the places he 
had gone and the people who accompanied him. 
And a part of the video-recording was shown on 
the Madras Doordarshan in the news. Why did 
they show it and thus put other people also  who  
accompanied     him, to  similar     i risk? They will 
also be identified it at all     I somebody is after 
them. Somebody has to explain why such publicty 
was given and with what motive. I have received a 
copy     ! of the telegram sent to the Home Minister  
and  the  Prime  Minister     from  the wife of 
Shanmugam. Shrimati     Bhawarii, and   it  sav: 
"My   husband     Kodiakhadu     I Shanmugam 
alias    Tayaram     arrested by CRT as the 
thirteenth accused in the Rajiv    | murder case. My 
husband    was murdered by CBI. T want justice. 
Please take action. '' I want to know whether the 
Home Minis-Star has received  a  similar telegram 
and whether that lady has been contacted and way ' 
she has the anwehension about CBI's killing her 
husband. 

Then there is a comic interlude also. One 
report savs his body was cremated under very 
tight security in his native village. We can, of 
course, understand the police actions. 
Therefore, all this indicates that there is a 
clear case of homicide, not suicide. The 
Home Minster might taunt us that we are 
showing etrxaordinary interest 

in this case. The whole nation is interested to 
know the rer. iifications of the conspiracy 
which led to the assassination of Mr. ft ijfv 
Gandhi. Very irresponsible state ments, (ens 
made by responsible Congress leaders ai 
cusnig some of the leaders in the South. In 
that context, everybody is eager to knew about 
the progress of this enquiry. This bungling 
could have been avoided and somebody has to 
answer for this kind of incident. 
SHRI M. S. GURUPADASWAMY (Uttar 

Pradesh): Mr. Vice-Chairman, this matter is 
becoming curiouser and curiouser as we go on. 
It reads like an Agatha Christy mystery story-
murder, investigation then suicide or murder—
deepniug the mystery. I know the position of 
the Home Minister including the position of 
the House itself. If the Home Minister can give 
straight answers to all our doubts and 
miseivfngs, no further questions on this would 
be needed. But the suspicion has deepened. 
I have with me the photo of the person 

Shanmugam, who has died     by hanging. 
Anybody can see the photograph. His feet are  
almost touching the ground  anJ  the rope has 
dropped from the branch of the tree to the very 
ground and it does not look like hanging at all. It 
looks like a person bein? haneed after death. 
Anybody can see that. I do not want to come to 
anv indsement. I am only raising a suspicion. My 
only concern is that  we    are investigating one of 
the greatest assassinations of the decade in this 
country. It is an   extraordinary   criminal      
investigation and  the whole  countrv is  exercised 
over it. In such  a  case such a  colossal negli-
gence  has  been  seen. Why  this  colossal in  this 
negligence  deliberate  or not   deliberate ? The 
ered  to  cooperate  with  the investigation answer 
has got to be found. A friend here said that a 
person who had surrendered to co-operate with 
the investigation would not hang himself. The 
opl'ce version is also the same. The person was 
cooperating with the SIT in its investigation. 
Even he was not handcuffed, he was freed and he 
was allowed to so to see his family members. He 
was given    sufficient freedom. There   is  also  a 
different background to  this. Earlier, Shanmugim 
had 
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complained about the harassment and torture 
by the police and pleaded for the presence of 
advocates. These are contradictions. But as 
per the varsion of  the SIT, the person was 
cooperating. I am amazed as to why this 
person was taken to his native village. That 
has to be explained. He was taken to the 
village where he had his family members and 
also the LTTE men operating. They say that 
he was a known smuggler. His smuggling 
activities were carried on in his own land or 
around his land. Then, why was he taken 
there? Did they want to find out the materials 
hidden there? Assuming that, why did they 
loosen the scurity and vigilance on him ? 
They said that he had escaped in the dark, 
after dinner. Two constables were always 
there with him even in the dark. So, if he 
could escape from their custody and vigilance, 
what are we to make out of it? The only 
suspicion is that Ihe would have been able to 
beat up those constables and escaped. But he 
was a lean man. He could not have 
overpowered two constables. That means, the 
only inference is that; there must have been 
some collusion between him and the police. 
The senior officials were sitting pretty in the 
tourist bungalow, doing what. I do not know. 
He escapes. May be, on his own, or, in 
collusion with the police. But he was found 
hanging near the tourist bungalow itself. It is 
not very far off. It is very near. But the police 
were searching and searching the whole world 
when his body was very near the bungalow 
itself. Look at the way the body is hanging 
there. According to the description given by 
the Home Minister, ihe upper cloth is not 
there. The dhoti is not there. 

A perosn, who hangs himself will not re-
move his dhoti, the upper cloth and all that. I 
do not know why. Why should a person 
remove his cloth before hanging himself? 
What for? My friend. Mr. Ram Jethmalani, is 
sitting here. He is an expert in criminal law. 
He is a criminal lawyer. He is an authority on 
law and, I think,, he will throw light on this. 
But for a layman like me, it is beyond me to 
understand how a person wanting to hang 
himself hangs himself almost naked. I do 
tint  tmrvor '. * 'r^ 

Sir, I do not want to take much time. I know 
you are short of time. Lastly, I would ask, 
where did Shanmugam get the rope, a very 
long rope, for hanging? Is the LTTE involved 
in this? Is the police involved in this? Is there 
a link, is three a nexus, between the police, 
the LTTE and Shanmugam? These are matters 
which arouse suspicions in our mind. I wish 
the Home Minister had made a detailed state- 

meat covering the various issues. Otherwise, 
these   questions   would   not     have 

arisen at all. This long debate, in the name of 
clarifications, would not have been there. It 
would have been short. But now, after his 
statement, our doubts get deepened. It is an 
extraordinary development which we never 
expected to happen when such a major 
criminal investigation is taking place in the 
country. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (DR. NAGEN 
SAIKIA): The next speaker is Dr. Nagen 
Saikia. I think he is not in his seat. If one is 
not in his seat, he should not be called. 
Therefore, I would call, in his place, Shri 

i 
   Ram Jethmalani. 

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: Thank you, 
Mr. Vice-Chairman, Sir. There are two 
factors which must be borne in our mind. This 
murder—I am not talking of the murder of 
Shanmukam or the suicide of Shanmugam; I 
am talking of the murder of Rajiv  Gandhi—
was  a 
 murder which was diabolical in its con-
ception. It was more diabolical. In its 
planning and frighteningly diabolical in its 
final execution. With this background, you 
must further bear in mind that you are dealing 
with a bunch of desperate people whose mind 
has been so conditioned with hate that their 
own life and the risk of death does not matter 
at all. You are dealing with such desperate 
characters. 

Now, my friend suggested that it is against 
human psyche that somebody should 
surrender under these circumstances. He is 
right. But these people are usually caught 
before they are officially shown to be in the 
custody of the police, and the interregnum is 
always used for the purpose  of  softening 
their     response     and 

     bringing  about  a  co-operating mind. We 
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[Shri Ram Jethmalani] all know how it is 
done. It is not necessary to go into this. But 
seeing the native of the questions asked and 
the statements which are being made, I 
almost feel like praying to God: 'Oh God' 
they do not know what they are saying. They 
are only trying to strengthen the case of the 
main accused in the investigation which is 
going on into this diabolical murder. 

I hope the Home Minister will not resist to 
this temptation and yield more information 
than is necessary. Sir, escapes from custody 
have taken place from the highest security 
prisons where there have been electrically-
charged fences, electronic surveillance 
devices and the best kind of armed personnel 
and guards. The great Shivaji Maharaj had 
escaped from Aurang-zeb's custody with all 
the paraphernalia of security which 
Aurangzeb had created against him. Charles 
Sobhraj escaped from a high security Tihar 
prison. So, escapes are known and, sir, some 
escapes are inevitable because our law is a 
civilized law. The best way of preventing an 
escape is to keep manacled, in chain and 
handcuff every 24 hours an under-trial 
prisoner or any other under-trial suspect so 
that nobody can escape, but that is not the 
civilized jurisprudence and law of this 
country. We always relax. And once we relax, 
there are bound to be some instances, rare 
instances, of escape and this is one of those 
instances in which I am not prepared to lay the 
blame at the door of the SIT. Frankly, as a 
Member sitting on this side, the manner in 
which the charges have been traded by the 
Treasury Benches against the Home Minister, 
against SIT and the investigation team and so 
on, I would have sat quiet and enjoyed the 
fun, but the record must be put straight. After 
all, I do not want the main investigation to be 
jeopardised, because the more questions you 
ask and the more disclosures take place, the 
more material will be in the possession of the 
accused who will ultimately be tried. 
Somebody suggested that the Home Minister 
must rush to Madras and go and pre-sonally 
sit there. The best argument that he will 
provide for the accused, who   is 

eventually going to be tried, is that there was 
a political interference to this investigation 
and the police did not do their duty under the 
Criminal Procedure Code. So, I hope the 
Home Minister will resist these pressures 
stoutly and will certainly not interfere with 
the investigation and let  the   officers  
investigate  this   case. 

In the background of this diabolical plannig 
add execution and in the background of the 
character of the accused persons involved, I 
think SIT deserves the highest 
congratulations for the manner in which they 
have conducted the investigation and the 
extraordinary success which they have 
achieved. I am, on the contrary, wondering 
why we do not devote so much attention to 
the investigation of death of other less 
important persons because in the eye of law 
an ex-Prime Minister or a Prime Minister is 
as important as any common man and the 
death of everybody is important. But, Sir, at 
least in this case there has been an 
extraordinarily alert investigation. I am 
surprised and I am very heartily pleased that 
so much progress has been made bearing in 
mind the diabolical execution and desperate 
character  of these   accused   persons. 

Now, the question is, what happened to 
Shanmugam? Somebody said—I am 
surprised that this kind of allegation should 
be made against SIT team—that they have 
been parties to the escape. Why should the 
SIT assist the escape of this man since he was 
cooperating and on that very day he had 
yielded very valuable information and had 
taken them to a place where they actually 
seized a large number of armaments and other 
material which are used for the commission 
of offence? But then they say, "How did he 
die?" One thing must be borne in mind that an 
accused in the position of Shan-mugham has 
two important motives for his life to come to 
an end. One motive is the usual escape from 
third degree because, be sure that these kind 
of trained people do not suddenly surrender 
and suddenly cooperate with the police unless 
there has been some tremendous application 
of the usual methods of which we are all 
aware. Second, they are always af- 
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raid that if they cooperate and are seen to  
cooperate, their   erstwhile   accomplices will 
wreak vengeance upon them and that 
vengeance might be more terrible than to end 
your life. To my mind, as a criminal lawyer 
and  as  a  person who knows  circumstantial 
evidence, I am quite satisfied that this is a 
case of escape and suicide and there is 
nothing more diabolical involved in this case. 
Nobody from a picture can  find  opt  whether 
a person was hanged  on   the tree   after  he   
was dead or    before     he   was      dead. 
Nobody can do that. This is a matter of 
detailed postmortem examination, forensic 
examination and so on and so forth. 
Therefore, Sir, let us not derail, let us not 
weaken, the original investigation which is 
taking place; let  not the  investigation  be  
confused with another investigation within an 
investigation. The most important investi-
gation is  the  murder  of the  late  Rajiv 
Gandhi. 

Sir, if one of the accused has died, he has 
already met his just desserts. Now God will 
deal with him. You forget about it and 
proceed with the investigation, and I suggest 
that no case is made out for any attack on the 
SIT which is donig a wonderful job. I am not 
an admirer of the CBI and the police force of 
this country. I know that they misbehave in 
many cases and they don't investigate cases in 
many cases and I know perfectly well that I 
have been fighting the CBI for not 
conducting investigations properly in many 
cases but, at least in this case, they have 
conducted the investigation perfectly for 
whu: h I hope, some day they will be 
rewarded. 

But, Sir, I want to ask two questions of the 
honourable Minister. After all, Sir, when an 
important statement is made on the floor of 
the House, you must give to honorable 
Members that information which is strictly 
relevant and throw some light upon the issues 
involved. Now, what is the points—this is the 
result of total carelessness; some bureaucrats, 
some officers, draft that statement, the 
Government okays it and puts it before the 
House— in saying that the white dhoti and 
white banian of Shri Shanmugam were found 
abandoned in a dry canal    a little away 

and that there were some stains on his 
underwear which looked like stains of a 
human secretion? Anybody who knows a 
little bii of medical jurispiudence knows that 
when you have so much pressure that when 
you are ultimately dead, all human exeretions, 
including faecal matter, come out. And it is 
not even semen. It is something which looked 
like semen. Why is the Home Minister giving 
us this kind of trivialities and details which 
are totally unimportant and, on the contrary, 
create some kind ol a confusion? So, Sir they 
should be careful in furnishing this material 
before the House and, any more material that 
comes before the House, I hope, will be 
carefully sifted so that the main investigation 
is not thwarted or in any sense frustrated. 
Thank you, Sir. 
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and punished accordingly to law. The longer we 
take over this process, the greater is going to be the 
uneasiness of the nation, the sorrow of the people 
of this country. Therefore, it is indeed a matter not 
only of great sorrow, great shock, but a matter of 
shame that in so sensitive, so dastardly, so 
diabolical an assassination we should allow these 
lapses to happen. There is no excuse at all. 

Madam Minister is here. She is talking down the 
notes. There is one thing I have thought of. 
Ordinarily, being a believer in the rule of law, I go 
all out in defence of the protector of law. But I find 
no excuse at all in their favour. What has been 
missed or what has been so succinctly put is that 
we have lost a very very vital link. We have all 
seen last Sunday on the TV Mr. Shanmugam 
leading to the disclosure of the cache of arms and 
other things. But that is not the only thing. What 
haa been missed is what is contained in this 
statement: 

"Futher, his men reportedly helped to arrange for 
reception, accommodation and transport on the day 
of landing of the killer group including Thanu. " 

Here was one man who knew every member of the 
assassination team, and it is a matter of regret that 
this one man who knew them, is no more. 

I do not have to emphasise that this is a case 
which will rely very strongly on circumstancial 
evidence. In circumstantial evidence you have a 
chain which is complete, which completes the guilt 
round the neck of the accused, and even if one link 
of that chain is weak, is loose, is not there, under 
our system of law which says that it is better to let 
99 persons go free rather than hang one innocent 
victim, the consequences can be terrible. We have 
paid the price of that in the Indira Gandhi's 
assassination pase. 

At the end of the statement there is at homily. 
Why these crocodile tears that the investigation will 
be proceeded with vigorously? 

SHRI E. BALANANDAN     (Kerala); What else 

should he say? 

SHRI MURLIDHAR CHANUKA-KANT 
BHANDARE: Sir, the assassin* tion of Mr. 
Rajiv Gandhi has been a colossal tragedy. 
The nation is still reeling under its shock and 
has not yet recovered from it. One of the 
things which could heal the wounds to some 
extent and hasten the recovery would be to 
see that those who are guilty of this heinous 
and diabolical   act are   arrested, brought  to 
book 
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SHRI MURLIDHAR CHANDRA-, 
KANT BHANDARE: I do hope that ! 
people had applied their mind. Something 
so serious has happened. After all 
these things have happened I am not sur 
prised when the certificate came from 
my hon. friend, Mr. Ram Jethmalani. I 
never understood this logic at all that 
there are escapes. He referred to Shivaji. 
as if Shivaji and Shanmugam are in the 
same bracket. I am totally amazed. 
He referred to Charles Sobhraj. I 
could not understand what he was 
trying to say. I can only say that 
he was totally out of his mind. 
When   he   gave   that   certificate ..............  

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (NAGEN 
SAIKIA): Pelase seek your own 
clarifications. Please do not comment   on   
others   statement. 

SHRI   MURLIDHAR CHANDRA- 
KANT   BHANDARE: I   am  entitled to. I   will  
invite   a   ruling. He   has said  that  no   action   
should be taken against... (Interruptions)... What     
I    am saying   is   that   this   is   a     far   more 
serious   and   fundamental      issue   of the   rule  
of  law. I  will not  refer to his   name. He   said   
that      nothing should   be  done. Just  take   it   
to   its logical      conclusion. Tomorrow      if 
somebody   says   that   because      there are  
murders  in  the  society, no murderer   should   
be punished, because there   are   rapes  in  the     
society, no raipst  shuold   be   punished, this   
will become   an   extraordinary   argument. It 
has to  be rejected  outright. I  am quite amazed 
that it has been  stated in this House. 

THE        VICE-CHAIRMAN (DR. 
NAGEN SAIKIA): He has every right to seek 
clarifications and he has sought his 
clarifications. Now you seek your 
clarifications. You need not comment on 
other Members'   clarifications. 

SHRI   MURLIDHAR       CHANDRA-
KANT      BHANDARE: What   I   am saying   
is   that... (Interruptions)... 

THE      VICE-CHAIRMAN (DR. 
NAGEN  SAIKIA): The  Home  Minister   
will   reply  to   your  clarifications. 

SHRI   MURLIDHAR       CHANDRA-KANT   
BHANDARE: The   debate   is a   combination   
of   the  various   ideas which   are   thrown   in   
this  House. I may   agree   with  some   points. 
I   am agreeing   with      the   hon. Member, 
Shri   Chaturanan   Mishraji   when   he said: "A   
vital link  is  lost. How are we   going   to   
complete   the  investigation   successfully?"   I  
agree with my friend, Mr. Swaminathan   
though   I do  not  agree with my friend belong-
ing   to   my   party      that   only      CBI should   
not   be   in   charge   of  the   investigation. But  
if   there   is   any   information  available  with  
the Madras Police, I  do   not  think  that  a  
crime like   this   can  be   solved  by   the   CBI 
without   the   cooperation   and   assistance   of   
the   local   police      wherever it   is   required. 
They   may   require the   assistance  in Delhi. 
They  may rtequire   the   assistance  )in   
Bombay. They   certainly   require   it   in   
Tamil Nadu. This   heinous   crime   has   not 
only   taken   the   life   of   one   of   the most   
precious   sons   of   this   country but   it   has   
caused   some      kind   of j   instability   to   
this   country. Suddenly you   find       that      
the     tallest    of    the leaders  disappearing  
from   the  scene. When   that   kind   of   thing   
is   being investigated, to   say      that   you   
will not   allow   CBI   to   cooperate      with 
the   Tamil   Nadu   police   or  you   will l    not   
allow      them   to   cooperate  with the   
Maharashtra   police   or   with   the Punjab   
police  because   you  may find that   there    are   
links       between   the Punjab   militants, and   
the   Kashnair militansl, the      secessionists, 
the Pakistani      elements      and   so   many I    
other  foreign  hands  is not     correct. I    You   
have   to   take   the       assistance even   from   
the   Interpol   and      other agencies   in   this   
field. So   anybody tomorrow       can   get   up       
and   say: "Well, I  have   a  certificate from  
Mr. '   Ram   Jethmalani   that  nothing  should I   
be   done   against      it. "   I  think it  is I   
wrong. We   should      take      action against   
those   who   were   present   in ■   that   
bungalow   and   in     whose  pre-j    sence   
Shanmugam; escaped. I   think i   this  is   the  
least  thing   that   can   be 
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[Shri Murlidhar Chanderkant Bhandare] done; 
otherwise you will have no investigation at all. 
The least that should be done is that 
everybody who was present in the travellers 
bungalow should be suspended. I say it with a 
sense of resopnsibility. If there be a lurking 
apprehension, if there be a lurking doubt that 
the investigation is infiltrated by the people 
who are there, to say that there is no fair 
investigation, then, there •will be no end to it. 
I go further even those officers who were 
responsible in placing these people in that 
travellers' bungalow, they should be made 
accountable and in fact at least some of them 
should be suspended. 

THE        VICE-CHAIRMAN, (DR. NAGEN   
SAIKIA): Please   conclude. SHRI     
MURLIDHAR     CHANDRA-KANT 
BHANDARE: I will take only two   minutes. 
There   is   one      thing which     I  want   to 
say  and   that is, all the  things   are   very, 
very     suspicious. I do not want to go into the 
aspect of  the   rope. I   do   not   want   to   go 
into   many   other   things. There   are reports   
that   he   was   allowed   to   go to  his house  
also. I   do  not  go  into that  also. But  I  will 
not end before I   express   my  grave     
reservations— and   I  am  not  very   happy   
to   make them—that     every     such    
incident endangers   the   safety   of   Soniaji, 
Rahul and   Friyanka      because   if   it  is   so 
easy   to   get    out  of the   coustody, of the  
most   sophisticated   team, how easy  it  will   
be  to   do  many     other things!      I   cannot   
even     imagine. I would   like  the   hon. 
Home  Minister to   clearly   explain   from      
where   he got  the rope, how   he   escaped, 
whit action has  been  taken  and, last  but not  
the least, when they will get  at tha   one-eyed   
Jack. 
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THE      VICE-CHAIRMAN (DR. 
NAOEN SAIKIA): Please seek clarifications 
and don't make a speech. Don't make a 
speech. I am not going to allow you to make 
a speech. Now please seek  your  
clarifications. 
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THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (DR. NAGEN 

SAIKIA): Please seek clarifications and don't make 
a speech. Don't make speech. I am not going to 
allow you to make a speech, ow please seek your 
clarifications. 

 ■(Translation in Arabic Script. 
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THE       VICE-CHAIRMAN   (DR. 
NAGEN   SAIKIA): I  shall     call     th( next speaker 

n
o
w
. 

THE      VICE-CHAIRMAN (DR. 
NAGEN   SAHCIA): You   seek   clarifications  
only  and  conclude now. 

 



 

SHRI TINDIVANAM G. VENKAT-
RAMAN (Tamil Nadu): Sir, the first point on 
which I would like to seek clarifications from 
the Home Minister is as to what prompted him 
to airdash to Madras. Did he take this decision 
on his own accord or wit it decided in the 
Cabinet meeting? Secondly, Sir, after having 
made the visit, the statement that he has made 
is bereft of the particulars which every 
Member here is seeking. He first visited the 
place where Shri Rajiv Gandhi was 
assassinated and paid his homage. His next 
place of visit was Karchipuram where he met 
had Paramacharya. After that, he flew over the 
area and had an aerial view of the place where 
Shanmugam committed suicide. I most 
respectfully ask: Is that the reasons why the 
Home Minister visited the place or was it to 
elicit information from the people who are 
conducting the investigation? Hon. Member, 
Shri Upendra had also read out a wire that was 
sent to the authorities concerned, the 
President, the Prime Minister and the Home 
Minister by the wife 

of the decreased saying that her husband had 
been murdered by the CBI. In that case, we all 
expected him to visit the place and, in fact, it 
has been reported in the Hindu that a iol of 
people had gathered there an. they wanted to 
meet the Home Minister and make their sub-
missions in connection with this shrouded nd 
mysterious death. But he did not visit the 
people. I would like to know from the Minister 
as to wha prevented him from landing. It has 
been mentioned that the helicopter had 
developed a snag. Then how did he land at 
Meenamibakkam? Hence I would like to know 
from the Home Minister as to what prevented 
him from visiting the place of suicide. A lot of 
theories have been given by the SIT. But these 
theories will not convince this House. My 
third point is, after one reads the statement, 
one will find that it is nothing but a cock-and-
bull story and nobody would believe it. From 
5 P. M. on 18th July, 1991 to 9 PM on 19th 
July, 1991, almost for 21 hours, the man was 
with them. As is usual in the Indian police 
department, there will be a confession which 
leads to a discovery under section 27 of the 
Evidence Act. That is the modus operandi of 
the police officials. The police searched the 
forest areas and a lot of things were recovered. 
This has been stated by the investigating team. 
After all these things, will a man be capable of 
sealing a wall and run away from the police 
custody? No man with common sense would 
believe this story. Had the Home Minister 
visited the place and listened to the people he 
would have got some idea about what 
happened. He wanted to find out the truth. But 
where is the truth coming? It is just like an 
aerial view, just like people going and seeing 
floods. This is not satisfactory. I request for a 
clarification from the Home  Minister. 
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Sir, the police people have described all 
the items to make it appear as a clear case of 
suicide. But they have missed one thing. 
There is absolutely no injury. But, if it is a 
ase of suicide, there must be rope marks and 
it is an inevitable thing and it must be an 
elogated mark also. But, in this case, there is 
absolutely nothing there. Therefore, it is clear 
that either the police officials have used 
third-degree methods because of which he 
died or the enemies of Shanmugam had taken 
him stealthily and murdered him. That must 
be the conclusion. I would like to know what 
the con-culsion our Home Minister has come 
to on the basis of the facts that have been 
narrated by the SIT people. 

As the former Leader of the Opposition has 
pointed out a person who wants to commit 
suicide needs  small rope only. But this rope 
is about sixty feet in length. What is this? It is 
a cock-and-bull story and we are not prepared 
to believe it. They want to prove that it is a 
case of suicide. As he very clearly pointed 
out, if iat is a case of suicide, how is it that he 
is there On the ground? He is almost touch 
ing the ground. Moreover, the police officials 
have said, and it is there in the police 
investigation also, that he was even prepared 
to be an approver. In that case, was he  hot   
an important witness? 

Then, Sir, he was flown in a helicopter to 
Madras and he was kept there in police 
custody and then was transferred to the place 
of occurrence. The DIG. the SP and two 
Inspectors were there and two constables 
were also there. What action has been taken 
against these people as of today? It is also 
mentioned in the papers that the two 
constables are the persons lowest in the grade 
and these people have been asked to take 
action against these   constables. But  no   
action  has 

'fnere is another thing also. The post-
morterm certifiate or report is given 
immediately after it is done, after it is 
finished. In this case it has not been done so. 
Therefore, it is nothing but a cooked up affair 
This way we are not only losing the 
important links but we are also giving room 
for the other fellows to escape. So, in a 
serious matter of this type, I do not know 
whether this is the way the investigation is to 
be done. Our honourable Home Minister has 
given a good chit to them. I do not say any-
thing against that. But are there not very 
serious lapses? The most important link in 
the whole case, that is, this person, 
Shanmugam, is not there now. He has been 
allowed to escape and then die or was killed 
This is a serious lapse. Therefore, I want 
clarifications from the Home Minister on all 
the points that I have   raised. Thank  you, 
Sir. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (DR. 
NAGEN  SAIKIA): What  is     your point of 
order? 

 
THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (DR. 

NAGEN SAIKIA): I am told that it 
is a part of his name... {Interruptions)... 
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DR. ABRAR  AHMED: Sir, this   is a very 
serious thing. This should be clarified... (. 
Interruptions).. This      is a   very    serious    
thing    and a    sensitive thing... 
(Interruptions)... 

THE      VICE-CHARIMAN (DR 
NAGEN SAIKIA): O. K. Your point has been 
taken. The Home Minister is here. When the 
time comes he will reply to it... 
(Interruptions).. He will reply to your point... 
(Interruptions)... 
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SHRI M. VINCENT (Tamil Nadu): Madam 
Deputy Chairman, the statement of the hon. 
Minister is quite unbelievable. Shanmugam 
surrendered to the police   on   17-7-1991   
voluntarily. Therfr- 
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[Shri M. Vincent] 
fore, it is not yet believable that he escaped on 
19-7-1991 and committed suicide just two 
days after his surrender. When Shanmugam 
was washing his hands, were the Constables 
not around? If they were there, why did they 
not fire when Shanmugam started running? It 
is stated that Shanmugam escaped under the 
the cover of darkness. The question fo 
darkness can come only after escaping from 
the building. Therefore, I would like to know 
whether there was security lapse in the 
building. Or was the helped by some officers 
inside the building? 

Madam, the hon. Home Minister's visit to 
Vedaranyam was kept secret. Even the Tamil 
Nadu Government and the Police were not 
informed of his visit, journey route and 
destination in spite of the cordial relations 
between the Tamil Nadu Government and the 
Centre. Madam, the Minister had total faith in 
the CBI from whose custody Shanmugam 
escaped. If that visit to Vedaranyam was so 
important and confidential that necessitated to 
keep the Tamil Nadu Government and the 
Police away, for what reason, Mr. 
Venkatasubrah-manyam, the former Vice-
Chancellor of Pondicherry University, whose 
house was raided by the CBI one year back, 
accompanied the Minister to Vendaranyam? 
What role he has in their investigation? Why 
Taniil Nadu Government was kept in dark 
ibout the visit of the Home Minister ' ) 
Vedaranyam? Thank you, Madam. 

 

"Shri Shanmugam was arrested by the 
SIT on 17-7-1991 after he had surrendered 
himself to the local police. " 

"No marks of injury were found on the body 
during the inquest held by the Revenue   
Divnsional   Officer. " 

 
"The inquest report and the postmortem 
reports are still awaited. The report of the 
postmortem examination has been reserved, 
pending Chemical Analysis of Viscera. " 
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SHRI SARADA MOHANTY (Orissa): I 
would like to know from the Home Minister 
as ID why the SIT chose a particular 
bungalow without proper security 
Arrangements   for    interrogation. 

SHRI SHIV PRATAP MISHRA (Uttar 
Pradesh): Madam Deputy Chairman, I would 
like to know through you from the hon. Home 
Minister of India, whether Shanmugam had 
surrendered or was arrested on 17-7-1991. He 
was taken on remand on 18-7-1991. I want to 
know whether it is correct that he was search-
ed from 5 p. rn to 9 a. m. on 19 July, 1991 
and was brought to inspection bungalow at 
Vedaranyam at 3 p. m. and investigation 
continued till 9-45 p. m. Mr. Shanmugam 
escaped by 10-35 p. m. on 19 July. 1991. The 
body was found at 6 A. M. on 20th July. 
During the investigation between 3 P. M. and 
10. 45 P. M., what are the findings or the 
clues found relating to assassination of Shri 
Rajiv Gandhi? Shanmugam, as has been 
described by the hon. Home Minister, was the 
main link in the assassination of Shri Rajiv 
Gandhi, and the findings and clues during this 
investigation can be a vital source to trace out 
the other culprits, can   the   hon. Home  
Minister   en- 

sure  that   these   findings   and   clues  will 
be  preserved  and  not  destroyed   as hap 

j     pened   in     the   escape     of  Shanmugam? 
j     Will   it  be  ensured   by the   Home Minis- 
I     ter? 
! 

THE  DEPUTY     CHAIRMAN: Now, 

the  Home  Minister... 

SHRI   S. B. CHAVAN: I   will  reply 

tomorrow after Question  Hour. 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Then we 
have the special mentions and half-an-hour 
discussion. We take up special mentions   
now. Shri   Ganesan. 

SPECIAL MENTIONS 

Resentment    among    employees    of    the 
Bureau of Indian Standards 

SHRI MISA R. GANESAN (Tamil Nadu): 
Madam Deputy Chairman, I thank you very 
much for giving me an opportunity to have 
my special mention. Through this special 
mention I want to draw the attention of the 
Government to a very serious state of affairs 
that is prevailing with the employees in the 
Bureau of Indian Standards in respect of 
discrimination    in    their   promotions. 

The Indian Standards Institution which is a 
very old institution has been functioning from 
January 1947 to prepare and  promote  
standards. 

Te BIS was established with effect from 
1st April, 1987 under the provision of the 
Bureau of Indian Standards Act, 1986, and it 
took over the functions, assets and liabilities 
of the ISI. The Bureau is a body corporate 
consisting of members representing the 
Government, industry, scientific and research 
institutions and other relevant interests with 
Minister in charge of Food and Civil Supplies 
as its President and Minister of State or a 
Deputy Minister, if any, as Vice-President. 
The Bureau is assisted in its functions by an 
Executive Committee. 


